

INFORMATION HANDBOOK FOR VOLUNTEERS

Table of Contents

1.0	Who are the volunteers?	3
2.0	What we can expect from volunteer	3
3.0	What our volunteers can expect from the WNCHC	3
4.0	What are the staff's responsibilities towards the volunteer?	4
5.0	What are the volunteer's responsibilities?	4
6.0	What the volunteers need to know	5
7.0	Identification	5
8.0	Compilation of volunteer hours	5
9.0	Health and Safety	5
10.0	Insurance	6
11.0	Training	6
12.0	Communication	6
13.0	WNCHC Procedures for volunteers	6
14.0	Criminal record check	7
15.0	Confidentiality	7
16.0	Expense reimbursement	7
17.0	Conflict of interest	7
18.0	Representing the WNCHC	8
19.0	Discrimination and harassment	8
20.0	Volunteer evaluation	8
21.0	Volunteer recognition	9
BILL O	F RIGHTS FOR VOLUNTEERS	. 10
Histor	y of the West Nipissing Community Health Centre	. 12
DEFIN	TION OF HEALTH	. 13
Confid	entiality Agreement	. 15
Kilome	eters Calculations (to & return)	. 16
Mileag	ge Expense Claim	. 17
Key Re	gistration	. 18

1.0 Who are the volunteers?

A volunteer is someone who gives a commitment of time and energy for the benefit of the community, which is undertaken freely without financial gain. It is a vital resource for most community organizations. According to a 2007 Canadian survey on giving, volunteering and participating, nearly 12.5 million Canadians; or 46% of the population aged 15 years and older have volunteered. With an astounding 2.1 million hours of volunteering, this is equivalent to 1.1 million full time employments. The most common reasons to volunteer are the desire to contribute to the community, building friendship, support and recognition for their work, and the feeling of being connected to the community.

2.0 What we can expect from volunteer

Although our volunteers don't get paid, the Centre expects them to behave like a paid staff, and to excel in their role.

It is understood that:

- **2.1** The Centre recruits volunteers who have the right skills and knowledge for the job
- **2.2** The volunteers receive a general orientation of the WNCHC
- **2.3** The volunteers are reliable, mature and punctual
- 2.4 The volunteers participate in meetings, sessions or training as needed
- **2.5** The volunteers ARE part of the team
- 2.6 The volunteers will accomplish their skills and role to the best of their abilities

3.0 What our volunteers can expect from the WNCHC

Our volunteers have the right to be treated the same way as the staff. The volunteers can expect that:

- **3.1** Their tasks are important and interesting
- **3.2** Their tasks add to the services offered through the WNCHC
- 3.3 That we will provide them with the proper training needed to accomplish their tasks
- **3.4** That they will be supervised and supported in their efforts
- **3.5** That they will be consulted for the planning and evaluation of the programs and services in which they participate.
- **3.6** They will work in a safe environment
- **3.7** Their confidentiality is respected

4.0 What are the staff's responsibilities towards the volunteers?

The staff at the WNCHC has the responsibility to:

- **4.1** Identify themselves to the volunteers as the individual responsible for the program
- **4.2** Support, encourage and praise the work being done by the volunteers
- **4.3** Develop job descriptions for the volunteer position
- **4.4** Thoroughly explain the Centre's expectations of the volunteers
- **4.5** Guide, supervise and evaluate the volunteers
- **4.6** Treat the volunteers as a team member
- **4.7** Remain attentive to the volunteer all the time
- **4.8** Encourage RESPECT for everyone

5.0 What are the volunteer's responsibilities?

The volunteers at the WNCHC commit to:

- **5.1** Be open and honest towards their motivation and goals
- **5.2** Fully understand their tasks before accepting to volunteer
- **5.3** Complete their tasks efficiently and honestly
- **5.4** Accept to be guided and supervised by the volunteer supervisor
- **5.5** Participate in the training offered by the Centre
- **5.6** Respect the confidentiality of all participants
- 5.7 Advise the clients if they feel the need to further discuss information regarding the client with a staff from the WNCHC, and to respect the choice of the client if they do not want this information to be shared with anyone else
- **5.8** Be aware of the obligations regarding child protection, self-harm or harm to anyone else. This must be discussed with a staff member and dealt with right away
- **5.9** Respect the values and needs of the clients, without judging or influencing them
- **5.10** Communicate their ideas, suggestions or opinions to improve or to change ourprograms
- **5.11** Advise as soon as possible if they are not able to attend an information session, training or if they cannot present themselves to the activity/program.
- **5.12** Not accept gifts or money from other clients
- **5.13** Not sign documents or personal forms based on the demand of a client
- **5.14** Respect the policies and procedures of the WNCHC as well as the decisions from the staff at the WNCHC
- **5.15** Not speak about or represent themselves for WNCHC outside their role as a volunteer

6.0 What the volunteers need to know

Here is practical information needed to accomplish your role as a WNCHC volunteer

6.1 Catchment

The WNCHC offers services throughout West Nipissing. Programs are mainly held in its main office in Sturgeon Falls.

6.2 WNCHC building

The WNCHC building is protected with a safety alarm outside regular working hours. Therefore when volunteering outside regular working hours, you must be accompanied by a staff member to ensure the safety alarm is correctly turned on, or be issued your own alarm code and access key.

7.0 Identification

Volunteers, who will be working with clients are asked to wear a form of identification. A name tag will be given to you, and we ask that you wear this name tag when you are doing your tasks as a volunteer. We also ask that you return the name tag if you decide to stop volunteering at the WNCHC.

8.0 Compilation of volunteer hours

In order for us to collect data on volunteer contribution, we capture your involvement in our Electronic Medical Records under group activities. It is important that you include your name on the group attendance sheets.

9.0 Health and Safety

For your health and safety, as well as those participating in the programming, we invite you to:

- **9.1** Familiarize yourself with the evacuation plan of the site you are volunteering at
- **9.2** Familiarize yourself with the best emergency measures relative to your position and tasks
- **9.3** Wear comfortable clothing and shoes
- **9.4** Not touch any medical material or any equipment unless otherwise advised
- **9.5** Have your flu shot every year. This will be offered at the Centre by its primary care team. Vaccination against COVID-19 is mandatory.

10.0 Insurance

All volunteers are covered under the WNCHC liability insurance during the time you are volunteering.

However, if you are driving, you are responsible for your personal car insurance.

11.0 Training

All volunteers will receive an orientation on the WNCHC as well as information regarding what your tasks and responsibilities are as a volunteer.

It may be possible that the WNCHC offers some educational sessions or training in regards to your volunteer position. Some training may be mandatory.

12.0 Communication

The Community Programs Coordinator will keep you up to date about things that are happening at the WNCHC and will let you know of any other available volunteer position. Don't hesitate to contact the Centre if you have any questions regarding your position as a volunteer.

Please contact the volunteer or Community Programs Coordinator if:

- **12.1** You know you will be absent from your volunteer position, so we can find a replacement
- **12.2** You have other obligations that interfere with your volunteer position
- **12.3** You change your address or your phone number
- **12.4** You face a conflict while doing your volunteer tasks
- **12.5** You can no longer work as a volunteer with the WNCHC

13.0 WNCHC Procedures for volunteers

In order for the volunteers to work to the best of their ability and to participate as volunteers at the WNCHC, the following regulations have been established for your safety and the safety of others. Please do not hesitate to ask us questions in order to have a full understanding of these regulations.

14.0 Criminal record check

We ask that you have a criminal record check before you start your role as a volunteer with the WNCHC. You will be reimbursed.

We also ask that you inform us of any criminal activity that might have happened after you started your volunteer position.

If the volunteer doesn't inform us of a criminal activity that was done after starting their volunteer position, we will have to ask the volunteer to stop volunteering with us.

The WNCHC can ask the volunteer to give us an updated copy of their criminal record check at any time.

15.0 Confidentiality

Volunteers are responsible and required to respect the confidentiality of all staff, clients and employees of the WNCHC. This includes anything written or spoken by anyone you come in contact with during your time as a volunteer. Failure to respect the confidentiality agreement can result in termination of your role as a volunteer at the WNCHC. All volunteers must sign a confidentiality agreement when beginning to volunteer at the Centre.

16.0 Expense reimbursement

Volunteering at WNCHC should not cause you any expenses. We will cover the cost of your travel expense according to the policy of the WNCHC. You will find a Travel Reimbursement form at the end of this manual. Before incurring expenses other than routine mileage, please obtain approval from your volunteer coordinator.

17.0 Conflict of interest

A volunteer would be in a conflict of interest if they receive money or other favors for accomplishing their tasks as a volunteer. This conflict of interest policy applies whether this situation is real, apparent or has the potential to become reality.

Any conflict of interest should be immediately brought to the volunteer coordinator's attention. Failure to do so could terminate your role as a volunteer here at the WNCHC.

18.0 Representing the WNCHC

Only the president of the Board of Directors and the Executive Director of the WNCHC can speak on behalf of the WNCHC. Volunteers are only authorized to their tasks.

19.0 Discrimination and harassment

The WNCHC wants to offer a work place where the staff, volunteers and clients are all treated with respect without any discrimination or harassment. We respect everyone's race, culture, beliefs, age and sexual preference.

Discrimination means to treat a person differently based solely on class or category, while refusing to treat then equally with respect as everyone else deserves. The Ontario human rights code is a provincial law that gives all citizens of the province equal rights and opportunities without discrimination.

Harassment is saying remarks or gestures that are inappropriate.

If a volunteer or client feels that they were a victim of discrimination or harassment while attending WNCHC programs, they must immediately notify their assigned volunteer coordinator to take immediate measures to address the situation.

20.0 Volunteer evaluation

The volunteer coordinator will meet with you after your first three months to evaluate the following:

- **20.1** Your level of satisfaction
- **20.2** The efficiency of your sessions and training
- **20.3** The amount of direction that you received
- **20.4** The interaction between you and the Centre, as well as with the clients

Following this first meeting, an evaluation will be done once a year to ensure quality of service and your satisfaction of volunteering with the Centre. As well, we would like to ensure that the needs of the clients are still being met.

Volunteers who participate in small events or special events may be asked to evaluate their participation in the event. We want to offer a positive experience for our volunteers. Your ideas, thoughts, suggestions are always welcome.

Your contribution as a volunteer at the WNCHC will be formally recognized. You are equally invited to attend any public meeting (annual general meeting) as well as any information session. The Centre considers you to be a great asset to our team and appreciates your contribution.

V0-RI1

WNCHC VOLUNTEER PROGRAM

Effective:

August/18/2011

Approved by:

Executive Director

SUBJECT: VOLUNTEER RIGHTS

Revised on: March 16, 2022

BILL OF RIGHTS FOR VOLUNTEERS

- 1. THE RIGHT TO BE TREATED AS A CO-WORKER with talents, skills and responsibilities
- **2. THE RIGHT TO A SUITABLE ASSIGNMENT** with a clear job description and consideration for suitability, qualifications, life experience and available time
- **3. THE RIGHT TO PREPARATION FOR THE JOB** with orientation and training that is thoughtfully planned and effectively presented
- **4. THE RIGHT TO CONTINUING TRAINING ON THE JOB** with a follow-up to initial training information about new developments and training for greater responsibility
- **5. THE RIGHT TO SOUND GUIDANCE, DIRECTION AND RECOGNITION** by someone who is experienced, patient, well-informed, thoughtful and who has the time to invest in givingguidance
- **6. THE RIGHT TO PROMOTION AND VARIETY OF EXPERIENCE** through advancement to assignments of more responsibility and through transfer from one activity to another, through special assignments
- **7. THE RIGHT TO BE HEARD,** to have a part in planning, to feel free to make suggestions, to have respect shown for an honest opinion



APPENDICES, FORMS

& INFORMATION

History of the West Nipissing Community Health Centre

In November 2005, the McGuinty Government announced an expansion of the community health centre network in Ontario. West Nipissing responded in August 2006 by setting up a provisional board of directors composed of representatives from various groups in the community. These devoted volunteers worked for many months to complete the necessary procedure to obtain the approval and start-up funds from the Ministry of Health and Long-Term Care. Those volunteers were Collin Bourgeois (Chair), Roxanne Landry (Vice-chair), Dr. Jean Anawati, Claude Dubuc, Perry McLeod Shabogesic, Jacques Dupuis, Cynthia Dèsormiers, Joanne Savage, Carole Venne, Edward Loiselle, Suzanne Gammon and Guylaine Bourget.

In 2007, the Ministry of Health and Long-Term Care chose the consulting firm Cardinal Points to confirm that the community approved the choice of the sponsoring group for the West Nipissing Community Health Centre, to ensure the regional community's participation and to complete a needs study in order to better identify the health-care priorities in that region.

Further to the study, which was completed in March 2008, a "service plan" was developed, and in order to meet the needs of the population, the West Nipissing Community Health Centre made the commitment to:

- Provide its services in both official languages;
- Serve the jurisdictions of the Municipality of Nipissing West and Garden Village;
- Prioritize those groups identified by the study: seniors, young people, including young Aboriginal people, single-parent families, Francophones and people with no family doctor;
- Provide primary health services and health promotion and disease prevention services through an interdisciplinary team;
 - Coordinate services in that region while creating partnerships and integrating services.

In May 2008, the Board of Directors was formed at the first Annual General Meeting. The elected members of the founding Board of Directors were Collin Bourgeois (Chair), Dennis Yapps (co-Vice-Chair), Anne Proulx-Séguin (co-Vice-Chair), Jacques Dupuis (Treasurer), Gisèle Landriault, Ken Paquette, Perry McLeod-Shabogesic, Dr. Jean Anawati and Joanne Savage. The firm Daniel Gingras Associés was hired as a consultant to keep the project moving forward, and Collège Boréal in Nipissing housed the Centre while awaiting confirmation of a temporary site.

During its first year of operation, the Board of Directors approved the adoption of an official name, a logo developed by Perry McLeod-Shabogesic, incorporating documents, and drew up the constitution and by-laws. The Board also selected a permanent site and informed the community of the selection in December 2008. The location of the proposed site is the former Frank Casey School at the corner of Michaud and Ethel streets in Sturgeon Falls.

In January 2009, the Honourable David Ramsey announced that a Service Accountability Agreement had been signed by the West Nipissing Community Health Centre and the Ministry of Health and Long-Term Care in order to ensure accountability in the provision of health services to the residents of West Nipissing and Garden Village. In April 2009, the North East Local Health Integration Network (North East LHIN) took responsibility for transferring that agreement to the Centre.

In May 2009, the Centre announced the appointment of Suzanne Davidson-Noël as Executive Director, and the WNCHC started operating at a temporary site located at the West Nipissing Centre, 145 Main Street, formerly known as the Centre Sagesse, the site of the former hospital Hôpital St-Jean de Bréboeuf.

The hiring of staff was undertaken at the same time of the renovations to the temporary site, and the Centre welcomed its first primary care client on March 30, 2010. Community health promotion programming was also developed in response to the demand in the various areas throughout West Nipissing.

The process for requesting funding for the renovation of the permanent location continued. In August 2011, Honorable Deb Matthews, Minister of Health and Long-Term Care, announced the funding for the renovation project of the permanent location of the Centre. The planning and final approval phase took several years to complete.

In September 2014, the Board of Directors appointed Guy Robichaud as Executive Director, following Suzanne Davidson-Noël's retirement.

The Ministry approved the final plans of the renovation project in August 2015. The renovation of the former Frank Casey School, located at 68 Michaud Street in Sturgeon Falls, began shortly after, and was completed in August 2016. The West Nipissing Community Health Centre moved into its new permanent location in September of that same year. The well-attended grand opening of the permanent site included the unveiling of a new corporate image and website, designed by Crimson Pepper, a local firm, owned and operated by Howard Longfellow.

In November 2016, the North East Local Health Integration Network (NE-LHIN) approved the Centre's request for a funding increase to cover the cost of leasing the former Frank Casey Public School gym. This allowed the Centre to expand existing programs and develop new initiatives.

History of Health Centres in Ontario*:

Community Health Centres were established in Ontario near the end of the 1970s. In 1986-87, there were 12 CHCs, and today there are more than 50. CHCs are non-profit community organizations that provided a range of primary health and health promotion services in 56 communities in Ontario. Each CHC is governed by a community-elected board of directors and is located in the area where its clients live, thus allowing it to respond quickly to the identified health needs of the community it serves.

CHCs provide services through a paid multidisciplinary team which may include, among other medical service providers, doctors, nurse practitioners, health promotion nurses, nutritionists/dieticians and social workers. As such, CHCs are able to offer continuous care and unlimited high-quality services to clients with greater health needs.

DEFINITION OF HEALTH

The West Nipissing Community Health Centre endorses the World Health Organization's definition of health: "Health is a state of complete physical, mental and social well-being and not merely the absence of disease or infirmity".

Mission:

West Nipissing Community Health Centre provides primary health care, illness prevention and management, and health promotion services through an interprofessional team. The Centre commits to adopt a leadership role and work collaboratively with community partners to foster the social, mental and physical health of the Aboriginal, Anglophone and Francophone residents of West Nipissing and Garden Village.

Vision:

West Nipissing CHC strives to maintain a healthy community for a lifetime.

Values:

Empathy, Inclusion, Integrity, Empowerment and Respect

Kev	Personne	contacts:
IXCy	I CI SUIIIIC	i comacis.

WNCHC telephone: 705-753-0151

1. Renée Vaillancourt, Community Programs Coordinator ext: 214 Cell: 705-493-1185

2. Desirée Jackson, Community Health Worker ext: 216 Cell: 705-493-4744

3._____ ext:____ Cell:



CONFIDENTIALITY AGREEMENT

Signing this agreement is required to volunteer at the WNCHC. A signed copy will be place in your volunteer file.

I UNDERSTAND THAT:

- 1. Any personal health information to which I have access or that I obtain during my employment or affiliation with West Nipissing Community Health Centre (WNCHC) is confidential.
- 2. As a condition of my employment or affiliation with WNCHC, I must submit to their policies and procedures.
- 3. A breach of confidentiality may lead to dismissal or a breach of affiliation with WNCHC and may also result in legal action against myself by WNCHC and other.
- 4. I agree not to access, use or disclose any personal health information that I receive or possess in relation to my employment or in affiliation with WNCHC, other than that necessary to meet the requirements of my work. I also understand that under no circumstances will any confidential or personal health information be communicated within or outside WNCHC except to persons authorized by WNCHC to receive such information.
- 5. I understand that I must not change, destroy, copy or interfere with this information, except with the authorization of WNCHC and in conformity with policy and procedures.
- 6. I agree to keep all computer access codes (e.g. passwords) confidential and secure. I will protect all pieces of identification, keys and information available to me against theft, loss and destruction.
- 7. I will not share my access codes and/or pieces of identification with anyone, and I will not attempt to use those of others. I understand the legal responsibility of access codes and I am responsible for any work done under these codes. If I have reason to believe that my codes and/or my pieces of identification have been compromised or stolen, I will immediately notify either my immediate supervisor or the Executive Director of WNCHC.

I have read and understand West Nipissing Community Health Centre's policies and procedures on privacy, confidentiality and security.

Volunteer's signature: _	Date:
Coordinator's signature:	Date:



Kilometers Calculations (to & return)

Sturgeon Falls	to	Verner	34 km
Sturgeon Falls	to	Field	44.88 km
Sturgeon Falls	to	River Valley	74.2km
Verner	to	Field	41.2 km
Verner	to	River Valley	70.6 km
Field	to	River Valley	30.2 km
Sturgeon Falls	to	Cache Bay	8.3 km
Sturgeon Falls	to	North Bay	74 km



FIN-04

FINANCE Local Mileage Expense Sheet Policy #HR-TR1

P.O.BOX / C.P. 6308 - RUE MICHAUD ST. STURGEON FALLS, ON - P2B 1B8 TEL/TÉL 705-753-0151 - FAX/TÉLÉC 705-753-5387

Date	Travel To and From CSCNO-WNCHC	KM Travel	0.46\$ per KM	Amount
			\$0.46	\$0.0
			\$0.46	\$0.0
			\$0.46	\$0.0
			\$0.46	\$0.0
			\$0.46	\$0.0
			\$0.46	\$0.0
			\$0.46	\$0.0
			\$0.46	\$0.0
			\$0.46	\$0.0
			\$0.46	\$0.0
			\$0.46	\$0.0
			\$0.46	\$0.0
			\$0.46	\$0.0
			\$0.46	\$0.0
			\$0.46	\$0.0
			Sub-total	\$0.0
ments:				
			Grand Total	\$0.0
ase print and hervisor sign th				



GEN-03

GENERAL Key Registration

P.O.BOX / C.P. 6308 - RUE MICHAUD ST. STURGEON FALLS, ON - P2B 1B8 TEL/TÉL 705-753-0151 - FAX/TÉLÉC 705-753-5387

Organization	Employee	Client	☐ Volunteer	☐ Visitor	Student
First name:			Last name:		
KEY TRUSTEE R	EGISTRATIO1	N			
This form will serve as provided a key or a set				nmunity Health Cen	tre, has
Key Fob - This	s key allows access	to WNCHC mai	n doors and other ar	eas as approved.	
Office key - Thi	s key allows access	to an office or a	specific area		
Desk and office cab	inet keys ()				
Master key ()					
The trustee of this key	accepts the followin	g responsibilities	s:		
 I will keep the key in I will be responsible representative is on I will be responsible representative is on Upon completion of 	for the activities in site). for the content of the site).	the building whe	n my key is used to g	ain access (unless	a WNCHC
Security Code:					
I will be respor	and the second s	security code s	secret and notify the	e Centre of any br	each of
Signed:					
WNCHC representative:				Date:	
Receiving Party:				Date:	

Notes:			